
MEETING MINUTES FROM THE  
MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS COMMITTEE 
 

March 2, 2016 
 

Maricopa Association of Governments Office, Ironwood Room 
302 North First Avenue 

Phoenix, Arizona 
 

 
AGENCY MEMBERS 

 
 Jim Badowich, Avondale, Chair 
 Roger Olsen, Buckeye (proxy) 
 Warren White, Chandler, Vice Chair 
 Nick Russo (audio) 
* Wayne Costa, Florence  
 Tom Kaczmarowski, Glendale 
 Tom Condit, Gilbert 
 Rob Godwin, Goodyear (proxy) 
 Bob Herz, MCDOT 

  Lance Webb, Mesa 
  Dan Nissen, Peoria 
 * Leticia Vargas, Phoenix (Streets) 
  Jami Erickson, Phoenix (Water) 
  Rod Ramos, Scottsdale  
  David Mobley, Surprise (proxy) 
  Tom Wilhite, Tempe 
       * Jonathan Sorrell, Valley Metro  
       * Gregory Arrington, Youngtown 

 
ADVISORY MEMBERS 
 
 Greg Groneberg, ARPA 
 Jeff Hearne, ARPA 
 Arvid Veidmark, AZUCA 
 Tom Brennan, AZUCA 
  
  

  Brian Gallimore, AGC 
       Peter Kandaris, Independent  
        Paul R. Nebeker, Independent 
        Christina Buckle, SRP  
 

 
MAG ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 
 
      Gordon Tyus  

*  Members not attending or represented by proxy. 

 
 
GUESTS/VISITORS 
 
Jim Anderson, Olson Precast Arizona 
Bill Davis, Advanced Drainage Systems 
Troy McGahey, New Horizon Sales 
 



1. Call to Order 
 
Chair Jim Badowich called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m. 
 
Mr. Badowich said that Nick Russo (attending via teleconference), Tom Kaczmarowski, and 
David Mobley have been officially appointed to the committee.  

 
2. Call to the Audience 

 
Chair Badowich announced the call to the audience. No members of the audience wished to 
speak. 

 
3. Re-admittance of Advisory Member  

 
In 2015, Paul Nebeker (Independent) failed to meet the attendance requirements for an 
advisory member. According to the committee bylaws, advisory members are required to 
submit a letter, be sponsored, and receive a 2/3 vote of the committee for re-admittance. Mr. 
Nebeker submitted a letter, which Mr. Badowich reviewed and noted that he has served on the 
committee for 20 years. Mr. Badowich called for a vote of the committee for re-admittance of 
Mr. Nebeker as an advisory member. A voice vote was taken and approved unanimously. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes 
 

The members reviewed the February 3, 2016 meeting minutes. Peter Kandaris noted that there 
were errors in the third paragraph under Item 15. He said it should read “Arizona Geological 
Survey” instead of Geologic Survey Institute, and also that the “University of Arizona” should 
replace “ASU.” 
 
Bob Herz moved to accept the minutes with the correction as noted above. Tom Wilhite 
seconded the motion. A voice vote of all ayes and no nays was recorded.  
 

 
Carry Forward 2015 Cases 
 
5. Case 15-05: Revise Section 616 Reclaimed Water Line Construction and Add New Reclaimed 

Valve Box Detail 270-2. 
 

Warren White provided a revised Detail 270-2 that included minor updates discussed at the 
previous meeting. This included removing the word “VALVE” from the plan and the notes. He 
also proposed removing the text “TYPE OF LETTERS TO BE SUBMITTED FOR 
APPROVAL” from note 2. Bob Herz suggested changing the detail number to 271 since Detail 
270 is referenced on four other details. He thinks it would be easier to change this detail 
number rather than update the other four details. Section 616 would then need to be updated to 
reference Detail 271. 
 



There was discussion about having grade adjustment details on the frame and cover details. It 
was decided to leave them on, since they can also be used for installation. Mr. White proposed 
to vote on the case at the next meeting. 

 
6. Case 15-13: Add text to Section 725.6 to Identify what to Include in a Concrete Mix Design 

Submittal. 
  
Sponsor Jeff Hearne said he had nothing new since there was no Concrete Working Group 
meeting during the month. 
 

 
New Cases for 2016 

 
7. Case 16-01: Miscellaneous Corrections. 
 

C. Arvid Veidmark added a new correction in Section 608 Horizontal Directional Drilling. He 
noted that Table 608-2 was missing bullets for the medium and large projects for Item 3 – 
Surface Survey. They were included in earlier drafts of the case, but accidentally left out of the 
one voted on last year. Mr. Badowich said it would be included as correction C in Case 16-01. 

 
8. Case 16-02: Add Section 106.2.1 Certificate of Compliance, add Section 106.2.2 Certificate of 

Analysis, and modify Section 717.2.1.2 Crumb Rubber. 
 

Bob Herz said this case was still under discussion at the Asphalt/Materials Working Group, 
and there currently are no changes. 

 
9. Case 16-03: Revision to Detail 251 RETURN TYPE DRIVEWAYS to adjust concrete 

thickness and concrete class for commercial and industrial driveways to match requirements 
shown on Detail 250. 

 
Bob Herz provided a revised Detail 251 that made corrections based on the previous meeting. 
These included changing the radius dimension to be per plans, and restoring note 1. He then 
asked for comments. Seeing none he proposed to vote on the case at the next meeting. 
 

10. Case 16-04: Adjustment to Section 340.2.1 for withdrawn ASTM C1028 reference. 
 

Bob Herz said he made a change to the last sentence of the last paragraph, adding “and 
alignment” to the text. The front page of the case shows the changes to Section 340.2.1, the 
back of the page shows the final revised text. With no additional comments, Mr. Herz proposed 
to vote on the case at the next meeting. 
 

11. Case 16-05: Dual Curb Ramps. New Details 236-1, 236-2, 237-1, 237-2 and revise Section 
340.3.9 Tolerances. 

 
Warren White introduced a new case for dual curb ramp details that he and Brandon Forrey of 
Peoria developed based on input from the Curb Ramp Working Group. The case included four 



new details that covered both radial and directional ramps with options for attached and 
detached sidewalks. The details were developed to meet the proposed PROWAG requirements. 
The details also were designed to provide options for different curb radii and curb heights. The 
slopes indicated on the details have some built-in tolerance such as using an 8% slope for 
ramps instead of the 8.33% maximum. The case also proposes revisions to Section 340.3.9 to 
provide information on the minimum and maximum allowable slopes and cross slopes. Mr. 
White said they had reviewed some agency supplements to develop the details, but more input 
is needed. 
 
Brian Gallimore said the 2009 MUTCD changes the location of crosswalks and asked if this 
was taken into account. Bob Herz said the placement of ramps needs to be coordinated with the 
crosswalks, but it would be part of the design. Warren White said as long as the landing for the 
turning area at the bottom of the ramps is within the crosswalk, it meets the requirement. Lance 
Webb also asked if there was a preference for directional ramps. Bob Herz said the designer 
would need to specify which to use. Mr. White said the working group wanted both options 
available since agencies had different preferences. 
 
Jim Badowich asked if they can be used for new and retrofits. Mr. White said yes, but the type 
of ramp may also be affected by available right-of-way. Rod Godwin of Goodyear asked if 
they took into account the location of pads for signal push buttons. Warren White said they 
could be added, but Mr. Webb said they probably would be submitted as a separate detail. 
 
Mr. White noted that ramps showed the option of a curb (instead of wing) for detached 
sidewalks. Jim Badowich asked if the curb could be used on both sides. Mr. White agreed that 
it could be done, but Mr. Herz was concerned about creating a potential tripping hazard. Mr. 
Godwin asked if the area in front of the detectable warning was a monolithic pour, and this was 
confirmed. There was also a question about whether and where to show the jointing lines on 
the details. 
 
Jim Badowich asked about the ramp concrete thickness, currently specified as 4”. He thought 
is should be at least 6”. Rod Ramos said Scottsdale now has 8” thickness for ramps, returns and 
the apron. Bob Herz said valley gutters are currently set at 9”. Mr. White noted that current 
details are also specified at the 4” thickness. Mr. Badowich said construction zones can cause 
problems that damage ramps. Trucks drive over ramps since they don’t have the normal 
turning radius available. Mr. Ramos said damaged ramps then can create problems for potential 
lawsuits. Tom Wilhite said he would review Tempe’s details to see what thickness they use. He 
also suggested showing the demarcation of the changes in thickness at the joints. 
 
Jim Badowich reminded members that one of the goals of the committee is to reduce agency 
supplements. He asked members to have their agencies review the details. Mr. White said they 
are open to suggestions to incorporate agency requirements. 
 
Tom Wilhite proposed to change the new language in Section 340 to read “slopes shall not 
exceed maximum grades.” Mr. White said they will continue discussion at the next Curb Ramp 
Working Group. 
 



 
12. New or Potential Cases. 
 

Dan Nissen of Peoria said Brandon Forrey suggested changes to Detail 235 regarding the 
slopes. He said he still needed to meet with him to know the justification for the changes, but 
thinks he will submit a case within the next couple months. It will also be reviewed by the curb 
ramp working group.  

 
13. Working Group Reports   

 
Chair Badowich asked for reports from the working group chairs. 
 

a. Curb Ramp Working Group  
Warren White said most of what was covered during the meeting had already been 
discussed previously with the introduction of Case 16-05. One area the working group 
discussed not mentioned was how to interpret PROWAG specs for cross slopes. (The 
notes were included in the packet). 
  
The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, March 14th at 1:30 in the MAG Palo Verde 
room.  
 

b. Water/Sewer Issues Working Group  
Jim Badowich said the group met Feburary 16th. (Notes included in the packet.) 
Discussion included the correction to table 608-2, and the case on the reclaimed valve 
boxes. He said Paul Nebeker had asked if it should include an option for locking lids. 
Many members said they preferred not to use them, so this option would likely remain 
an agency supplement. Lance Webb said Mesa prefers lids with deeper skirts to prevent 
them from popping out. Jami Erickson said Phoenix had an incident where a lid popped 
out and caused a bicycle accident resulting in a lawsuit. Some expressed they had 
problems with lids popping out with boxes manufactured in Mexico. Warren White said 
he has shop details for the boxes manufactured in India and USA, but not Mexico. 
 
Mr. Badowich said the group also discussed Water/Sewer testing, and that Tony Ayala 
of Avondale was researching agency requirements. He said the meeting also was 
attended by several meter box companies and they plan to update Detail 320. Mr. 
Badowich wants options for polymer concrete boxes as well as other materials, and also 
a standard for traffic rated boxes. 
 
Tom Kaczmarowski suggested the group look at asbestos testing in manholes. He said it 
was on the agenda at the county. Jami Erickson said Phoenix has put their projects on 
hold until the issue is sorted out. She also asked about HB 2549 regarding the selection 
of piping materials. Mr. Kandaris said he heard it died. Mr. Tyus said that he spoke to 
Steve Trussell of ARPA and that it was his understanding that the bill had been pulled 
and that the sponsors from the PVC pipe industry would be having discussions directly 
with the City of Phoenix before proceeding with legislation. 
 



Mr. Badowich said the next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, March 15th, at 1:30 in the 
MAG Chaparral room. 

 
c. Asphalt, Materials and Concrete Working Groups 

Greg Groneberg said that the group discussed Case 16-02 Certificates of Compliance, 
and ASTM updates. In addition to these items at the next meeting they plan to review 
the bike line green paint specs, and revisions to Section 710 regarding high volume and 
low volume mixes. He said the mixes they make meet the requirements of both, so 
differentiating them is not necessary, and just creates two sets of paperwork. 
 
On the concrete side, Jeff Hearne said he was trying to organize plant tours for agency 
staff. He would like to do one each for East Valley and West Valley plants, starting with 
the East Valley. He is organizing it for the 2nd week in April that would have a bus tour 
of material, asphalt and concrete plants that starts at Riverview Park. Reps from the 
companies would explain the processes during the tour. He is working on a flier to 
distribute and will bring it up at the next meeting. 

 
The next meeting of the joint Asphalt/Materials and Concrete Working Groups is 
scheduled for Thursday, February 17th, at noon. The meetings will be held in the ARPA 
office, 916 W Adams Street, Phoenix. 

 
d. Outside ROW Working Group  

Peter Kandaris said he was recovering from illness and didn’t have a chance to work on 
much last month. He noted that he would be out of state during the week of the working 
groups meetings so he would try to get some work done via email. 
 
 

14. General Discussion 
 
Jim Badowich said the group already discussed House Bill 2549. Rob Godwin said there have 
been changes to the AWWA specs that may want to be reviewed by the working group. 
 
Paul Nebeker noted that many agencies have approved materials lists. After working out of 
state, he realized how helpful they are for projects, and suggested if you don’t have approved 
material lists you may want to start them. Members discussed different ways new materials can 
be approved including trials. Mr. Nebeker said it also makes less work for inspectors when 
they can refer to approved lists. 

 
15. Future Agenda Items 

 
Chair Badowich asked the committee for any possible future agenda items. None were 
announced. 

 
16. Adjournment 

Seeing no further business, chair Badowich adjourned the meeting at 2:51 p.m.  


	AGENCY MEMBERS
	ADVISORY MEMBERS
	MAG ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF
	GUESTS/VISITORS

